IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE

STATE OF FLORIDA

Case No.: 87,342

the LIBERTARIAN PARTY OF FLORIDA; the LIBERTARIAN PARTY OF FLORIDA EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE; and ROBERT WILSON,

Petitioners

v.

JIM SMITH, in his official capacity as Secretary of State, and DOROTHY JOYCE, in her official capacity as Director of the Division of Elections,

Respondents

FILED SID J. WHITE

FEB 12 1996

CLERK, SUPPREME COURT Office Daputy Sterk

PETITIONERS' BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

DANIEL F. WALKER of D. Fleming Walker, P.A. 221 E. Seventh Ave. Tallahassee, Florida 32303 (904)-224-5545

INTRODUCTION

The petitioners filed a complaint against the respondents, in their official capacities, challenging the state and Federal constitutionality of §99.103, Fla. Stat. (1993). Under the challenged statute, a party with five per cent or greater statewide voter registration (a "major" party) is statutorily entitled to a percentage of the filing fees paid by its ballot-qualified candidates for state and federal office. Ballot - qualified candidates of a "minor" party, a party with less than five per cent statewide voter registration, see no portion of their filing fees distributed to the party with which they are affiliated.

The circuit court and the the First District Court of Appeal determined that the challenged statute satisfied state and Federal constitutional standards. The petitioners now seek review by the Florida Supreme Court.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The petitioners consistently maintained claims that §99.103, Fla. Stat. (1993), insofar as the fee-distribution standards are concerned, violated the petitioners' rights of political association under the First and Fourteenth Amendments of the U.S. Constitution as well as political participation rights under Article I, Sections 1 and 5 of the Florida Constitution. The circuit court upheld the constitutional validity of the challenged statutory scheme, as did two of the three judges (one dissenting) on the First District Court of Appeal panel. The Florida Supreme Court has jurisdiction and

should exercise that power to review this case.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE 1

THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT HAS AND SHOULD EXERCISE ITS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION OVER THE CASE SUB JUDICE.

This case plainly falls within the parameters of Art. V, $\S 3(b)(3)$, Fla. Const. and Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(i).

The First District Court of Appeal, in <u>Libertarian Party of Florida</u>, et al v. Jim Smith and Dorothy Joyce, 21 Fla. Law Weekly D113, ___ So.2d __ (Fla. 1st DCA January 4, 1996), "reject[ed] appellants' contention" of the statute's unconstitutionality, and affirmed the circuit court's decision, though Judge Booth dissented, "persuaded by Appellants' arguments and authorities cited that [the statute] is unconstitutional as applied to prevent minor political parties from receiving partial rebates of their candidates' filing fees."

If jurisdiction is to exist, a decision should contain language to the effect that a challenged statute is valid or enforceable. See Cantor v. Davis, 489 So.2d 18 (Fla. 1986). Furthermore, the concept of "decision" embraces not only the result, but the entire opinion. Seaboard Air Line R.R. v. Branham, 104 So.2d 356, 358 (Fla. 1958). The district court of appeals' decision in this case falls well within the parameters for the Supreme Court to exercise jurisdiction to review

this case.

The First District Court of Appeal upheld the challenged statute on the ground that the statute was supported by a state interest to "strengthen and encourage major parties as a means of preventing factionalism and a multiplicity of splinter parties." The court's decision is unprecedented and should be reviewed, because the fee-distribution statute is completely unrelated to ascertaining whether a minor party has demonstrated sufficient public interest to justify being placed on a ballot and also is unrelated to state interests in preventing "clogged electoral administrative machinery" or similar concerns. The District Court of Appeal's reliance on Storer v. Brown, 415 U.S. 724, 94 S.Ct. 1274 (1974) was questionable at best and further necessitates review of this case.

Finally, the fee-distribution statute is one of statewide application, affecting the financial strength of new and minor parties in the electoral arena, imposing a condition on the exercise of political associative rights of citizens who affiliate with minor parties, and forcing minor party candidates for state and federal office to offset more administrative costs than do similarly-situated major-party candidates for the same offices.

CONCLUSION

Appropriate state and federal constitutional issues have been raised in the circuit court and district court of appeal, and the

lower courts determined that the fee-distribution feature of §99.103, Fla. Stat. (1993) is constitutionally valid.

In light of the issues that have been raised, and given the implications for new and smaller political parties desiring to run candidates and to have sufficient financial strength to compete with older, established political parties, the Supreme Court should review this case upon determining that jurisdiction exists.

Daniel F. Walker

D. Fleming Walker, P.A. 221 E. Seventh Avenue

Tallahassee, Florida 32302

(904)-224-5545

Fla. Bar No. 0935328