025

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED

SID J. WHITE FEB 23 1996

The LIBERTARIAN PARTY OF FLORIDA; the LIBERTARIAN PARTY OF FLORIDA EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE; and ROBERT WILSON,

Petitioners,

v.

CASE NO. 87,342

JIM SMITH, in his official capacity as Secretary of State; DOROTHY JOYCE in her official capacity as Director of the Division of Elections,

Respondents.

On Petition for Discretionary Review of a Final Decision by the First District Court of Appeal

RESPONDENTS' BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

CHARLIE MCCOY
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
FLORIDA BAR NO. 333645
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
THE CAPITOL--PL 01
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050
(904) 488-9935

ISSUE
WHETHER THIS COURT SHOULD EXERCISE ITS JURISDICTION TO REVIEW THE OPINION BELOW, WHICH EXPRESSLY DECLARES VALID A STATE STATUTE
CONCLUSION4
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE4
APPENDIX5
A. Libertarian Party et al. v. Smith, case no. 95-547 (Fla. 1st DCA Jan. 4,1996)
B. "Order of Final Judgment", case no. 93-5017 (Fla. 2d Cir. Ct. Jan. 11, 1995)
TABLE OF CITATIONS
Florida Constitution
Art. I, §3(b)(3)1
Florida Statutes
§99.103passim
Miscellaneous
Kogan, G. & Waters, R. The Operation and Jurisdiction of the Florida Supreme Court, 18 Nova Law Review 1201 (no. 2B, Winter 1994)3

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondents (the "State") accept Petitioners'
"Introduction" as a sufficient statement of the case and
facts for purposes of determining this Court's jurisdiction.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Court has discretionary jurisdiction to accept review. However, this case does not present an important enough issue to justify review; the result was just. Review on the merits should be declined.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE

ALTHOUGH THIS COURT HAS JURISDICTION, THE OPINION BELOW IS SOUND AND DOES NOT WARRANT FURTHER REVIEW

The First District Court of Appeal upheld $\S99.103(1)$, Florida Statutes, against several challenges under the U.S. and Florida Constitutions. This Court has jurisdiction under Art. I, $\S3(b)(3)$ of the Florida Constitution, to review opinion below.

This Court should not, however, exercise its jurisdiction. The opinion below is well reasoned, and relies on current federal and state precedent. It recognizes that §99.103 is designed to protect the State's compelling interest in "preventing factionalism and a multiplicity of splinter parties." (slip op., p. 5)

Specifically, the opinion below rejected the Party's argument that the State's interest ends once a minor party candidate qualifies to be on the ballot. In so doing, the court observed that although "petition requirements and other limitations on ballot access" may best effectuate the State's interest, §99.103 is reasonably related to its purpose. (slip op., p. 5-6)

By noting the existence of "petition requirements an other limitations on ballot access," the court implicitly recognized that §99.103 does not stand alone, but is part of the package of laws the Legislature has found necessary to protect the State's interest in preventing factionalism. Consequently, there is no merit to the Party's contention that "the fee-distribution statute is completely unrelated to ... state interests" (juris. brief, p. 3).

The Party's other contention is also without merit. The Party urges that review is appropriate because §99.103 affects the "financial strength of new and minor parties" and imposes a "condition on the exercise of political associative rights." (juris. brief, p. 3)

There is nothing in the record to support the Party's point about financial strength of new and minor parties, a point which approaches argument on the merits. 1 To the

The State questions the inclusion of briefs on the merits as appendices to the Party's jurisdictional brief. See Fla.R.App.P. 9.120(d) (Petitioner's brief, limited solely to the issue of the supreme court's jurisdiction..." [e.s.]).

contrary, the <u>trial</u> court expressly rejected this point based on lack of record support. (See trial court's order of final judgment, attached as Appendix B, at p. 7.) Moreover, a "new" party with more than 5% of the voters would be entitled to a filing fee rebate.

It must be remembered that the Party's challenge to \$99.103 is more narrow than it appears at first blush. A minor party candidate is not affected by \$99.103 if that candidate avoids a filing fee altogether by submitting an "undue burden" affidavit under \$99.096(5), Fla. Stat. Conversely, a minor² party candidate--like Appellant Wilson--paying a fee admits the fee is not an undue burden.

Both points advanced by the Party as grounds for review fail, and do not justify this Court's exercise of its discretionary jurisdiction. Restated, this case does not "present[] an important enough issue"; its "result was essentially just." Kogan, G. & Waters, R. The Operation and Jurisdiction of the Florida Supreme Court, 18 Nova Law Review 1201 (no. 2B, Winter 1994) (discussing the concept of "discretion").

jurisdictional brief. See Fla.R.App.P. 9.120(d) (Petitioner's brief, limited solely to the issue of the supreme court's jurisdiction..." [e.s.]).

² Major party candidates cannot avoid filing fees merely by submitting an affidavit. To avoid a fee, they must collect signatures equal in number to 3% of their party's voters. §99.095, Fla. Stat.

CONCLUSION

The Party's petition for discretionary review should be denied.